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STATE OF MAINE REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
RFP SUBMITTED QUESTIONS & ANSWERS SUMMARY 
	RFP NUMBER AND TITLE:
	RFP# 202503037: Avaya Telephony Platforms Maintenance and Support

	RFP ISSUED BY:
	Department of Administrative and Financial Services

	SUBMITTED QUESTIONS DUE DATE:
	April 21, 2025

	QUESTION & ANSWER SUMMARY ISSUED:
	April 24, 2025

	PROPOSAL DUE DATE:
	May 2, 2025, no later than 11:59 p.m., local time.

	PROPOSALS DUE TO:
	Proposals@maine.gov


Provided below are submitted written questions received and the Department’s answer.
	1
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	Would it be possible to provide an email or reply back to this email with a blanket statement that we can pass along to the various 3rd party solution providers in this RFP allowing us to provide for the support renewal quotes that are necessary for this RFP? 

	
	Answer

	
	All submitted questions will be answered in this Q&A Summary. Refer to part one B Overview -Platforms and Applications.


	2
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 1: Proposal Submission Deadline
	Would you be willing to grant a three-week extension on the proposal due date? 

	
	Answer

	
	The Department declines an extension to the Proposal Submission Deadline. 


	3
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	RFP Word Doc
	Are we to respond inline anywhere in the Word doc or only in the embedded Excel docs? Some of the info and questions appears to show up in both places.

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to Page 2 of the RFP, Part IV: PROPOSAL SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS for detailed instructions.


	4
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Appendix B
PART IV, Section I.

	Part IV says Cost Proposal (File #4) so what is Section 1? Is this Section 1?

1. General Instructions

a. Bidders must submit a cost proposal that covers the initial contract period starting 11/1/2025 and ending on 10/31/2027.  

b. Identify hardware and software license costs that shows no penalty for adding or removing software licenses or hardware.
c. The cost proposal must include the costs necessary for the Bidder to fully comply with the contract terms, conditions, and RFP requirements.

d. No costs related to the preparation of the proposal for the RFP, or to the negotiation of the contract with the Department, may be included in the proposal.  Only costs to be incurred after the contract effective date that are specifically related to the implementation or operation of contracted services may be included.
e. Bidder cannot substitute any part of the products (hardware, software, etc.) or change the order in which it is presented currently installed at the State of Maine in the Cost Workbook.

f. Review and respond to each row with a “M” mandatory field within the worksheet.  Worksheet placement of information is not to be altered or will disqualify Bidder.



	
	Answer

	
	APPENDIX E refers to the Cost Proposal Form. Section IV Cost Proposal (File#4) begins on page 29 and has 2 parts: Part 1 has general instructions for the cost proposal, and Part 2 includes Cost Proposal Form Instructions.  The Cost Proposal Form can be found in APPENDIX E.


	5
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Appendix C
	Can we use the same three (3) references across the board? The way it’s formatted it appears to ask for 48 references (16x3)

	
	Answer

	
	It is at the Bidders discretion. 


	6
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Appendix D
	A good amount of this section will be N/A but not quite sure how to explain without a “bottom line N/A” and don’t want our answer to be deemed “Incomplete” The fact is, most of this is simply N/A to the AVAYA platform and underlying subcomponents. What should we do?   

	
	Answer

	
	For the purpose of the RFP the bidder must demonstrate compliance with all types of data and applicable state and Federal standard policy & laws list in the table. 


	7
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	APPENDIX E
	To what extent ​do you require the winning vendor to support these hardware servers and software (VMWare) elements in this section?

	
	Answer

	
	100% on all hardware and software (VMWare) 


	8
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Appendix E: Calabrio
	Please confirm and validate QTY. Our records indicate (768) AQM licenses, (1) Server license and (10) CR licenses

	
	Answer

	
	Advanced Quality Management (AQM) 758/ Call Recording (CR) 10/ License 1. 


	9
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Appendix E
	How should we treat projects are in flight (Swampfox MDOL)? 

	
	Answer

	
	The incumbent vendor will be required to fulfil the contracted statement of work.


	10
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Appendix E
	What term should we be pricing here? 2 year? 1 year? 5 year? I see 3YAN referenced on the Avaya tab, “Annual Maintenance” on the Swampfox tab.

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to Instructions on Appendix E: 

Instructions: The Bidder must complete and submit cost proposal forms providing a detailed breakdown of expenses in performing the services on an annual basis. The Proposed Cost figure above, however, should include the total costs for the initial 2-year period of performance as described in this RFP and in the Bidder’s proposal. 


	11
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Appendix G 
	Are the APPENDIX H- REQUIREMENTS sheets in file 'Requirements Workbook - Appendix G.xlsx'  for APPENDIX G?

	
	Answer

	
	Appendix H is a high-level overview of the current environment for reference.


	12
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part I, E. Part V C&D
	When is the anticipated award date? 

	
	Answer

	
	The department has no estimate date for when an award will be made


	13
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	1)Can we process an LOA with Avaya for all of your Avaya Sold To locations?  2)Please provide the full name and email that we should send the LOA to?

	
	Answer

	
	1)Yes
2) Bidders can process an LOA from Avaya by reaching out to Wilson Lobao | Account Manager |  wjloboa@avaya.com.


	14
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	Can you provide and confirm the full listing of all of your Avaya Sold To #s for all of your locations?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes, Bidders can process an LOA from Avaya by reaching out to Wilson Lobao | Account Manager |  wjloboa@avaya.com.
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